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1. Name of Property

historic name: Watkins Creek Ranch

other name/site number: Firehole Ranch

2. Location

street & number: 1207 Firehole Ranch Road not for publication: n/a
vicinity: n/a

city/town: West Yellowstone

state: Montana code: MT county: Gallatin code: 031 zip code: 59758

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the d¢signated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, | hereby certify that this_X_nomination __ request for
determirfation of eligibility meets the dpcumentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the

Signatuye of certifyingGfficial/Title

Montana State Historic Preservation Office
State or Federal agency or bureau ( _ See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

In my opinion, the property __ meets __ does not meet the National Register criteria.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification

I, hereby certify that this property is: W of yer Date of Action
R . . S,
D_én(ered in the National Register / [2/2 ;[ /éadé

__see continuation sheet / /
__determined eligible for the National Register
__see continuation sheet /
___determined not eligible for the National Register
__see continuation sheet
___removed from the National Register
_ see continuation sheet
___other (explain):




Watkins Creek Ranch
Name of Property

Gallatin County, Montana
County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property: Private
Category of Property: District

Number of contributing resources previously
listed in the National Register: na

Name of related multiple property listing: na

Number of Resources within Property

Contributing Noncontributing
13 _7__ building(s)
6 _0 sites
A1 _1__ structures
0 _0_ objects
30 _8 TOTAL

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions:

DOMESTIC/single dwelling

DOMESTIC/multiple dwelling
DOMESTIC/secondary structure
DOMESTIC/institutional housing
DOMESTIC/camp
COMMERCE/TRADE/restaurant
RECREATION/CULTURE/outdoor recreation
AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE/agricultural field;
agricultural outbuilding; irrigation facility
LANDSCAPE/ unoccupied land; natural feature
TRANSPORTATION/water-related; road-related; pedestrian-
related

Current Functions:

DOMESTIC/single dwelling

DOMESTIC/multiple dwelling
DOMESTIC/secondary structure
DOMESTIC/institutional housing
DOMESTIC/camp
COMMERCE/TRADE/restaurant
RECREATION/CULTURE/outdoor recreation
AGRICULTURE/SUBSISTENCE/agricultural field;
agricultural outbuilding; irrigation facility
LANDSCAPE/ unoccupied land; natural feature
TRANSPORTATION/water-related; road-related; pedestrian-
related

7. Description

Architectural Classification:
OTHER/NPS Rustic

Narrative Description

Materials:

foundation: STONE/CONCRETE
walls:  LOG, STONE, WOOD

roof: WOOD, ASPHALT, METAL
other. METAL

Located primarily in Sections 6 and 7, Township 12 South, Range 6 East, the historic Watkins Creek Ranch (a.k.a. Firehole Ranch) is
situated on a sagebrush and grassland projection (locally known as “The Point”) which helps form the scenic southern shore of Hebgen
Lake in the southwest corner of Gallatin County, Montana. The ranch complex itself features a diverse assortment of historic resources
dating from the c. 1880-1954 period, and is concentrated to the west of the Watkins Creek drainage, which flows northward from the
Continental Divide some five miles to the southwest. The generally south-north flowing (Ernest) Ruof Ditch—a historic (c. 1926)
feature—flows northward through the ranch corrals to Hebgen Lake, but remains just east of the main ranch complex. Directly to the
north and east, and serving as the focal point of the ranch complex, is beautiful Hebgen Lake, an approximately 15 miles long and 2.5
miles wide artificial reservoir that was created when Hebgen Dam was constructed between 1909-1913. The western boundary of
Yellowstone National Park and the town of West Yellowstone, Montana, lie some eighteen miles to the East. To the south lies the
rugged Continental Divide, the lush Gallatin National Forest in Idaho, and the impressive 10600 foot Coffin Peak, which serves as a
breathtaking backdrop for the facility. The Gallatin National Forest lies immediately to the west of the ranch complex. Private
expanses composed of rolling grasslands and timbered benches include hay fields and pastures historically associated with the ranch,
and are considered contributing sites to the historic district.

The Watkins Creek Ranch built environment consists of a historic district of primarily rustic log and log and stone buildings, as well as
related sites, structures, and objects in two distinct groupings. The log and stone buildings comprising the historic district date from
approximately 1880-1954, with the majority of the site features dating from the 1940s. Buildings are typically constructed of logs
felled in the nearby forest. Indigenous stone locally quarried is commonly utilized for fireplaces.



tkins Creek Ranch Gallatin County, Montana
Name of Property County and State

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria: A,B.C Areas of Significance: AGRICULTURE; EXPLORATION AND

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions): B,G SETTLEMENT; ENTERTAINMENT/RECREATION; ARCHITECTURE
Significant Person(s): George S. Watkins Period(s) of Significance: c. 1866-1967

Cultural Affiliation: n/a Significant Dates: 1872; c. 1880s; 1944-47; 1954; 1967

Architect/Builder: George Watkins; Spencer Watkins; Clarence & Leila
Wright; K. and Ann Smith; Snedaker & MacDonald Architects, Salt Lake
City

Narrative Statement of Significance

The Watkins Creek Ranch Historic District is significant under Criterion A for its historic association with the evolution of agriculture
and land settlement in the Madison Valley, and in particular that area once known as the Madison Basin, in southwest Montana. In the
1860s, shortly after the discovery of gold at Alder Gulch, near present day Virginia City, George S. Watkins blazed the rough wagon
road through the Upper Madison Canyon that would eventually become Montana Highway #287, and thereafter regularly utilized the
Madison Basin for gazing livestock and cultivating hay. Because the fertile lands in question were remote and under-utilized, they
afforded Watkins great advantages and played an instrumental role in enabling him to rapidly become one of the most successful
ranchers in southwestern Montana. Throughout much of the latter decades of the nineteenth century, Watkins sold his surplus hay,
beef, and horses to area mining camps. With the establishment of Yellowstone National Park in 1872, Watkins became a key player in
supplying these crucial commodities to soldiers and tourists in America’s Wonderland, thereby facilitating the early development and
tourist enjoyment of the World’s first National park. During the 1920s, William Martzel homesteaded the lands in question.
Therefore, the ranch is historically associated with events that have made significant contributions to the broad patterns of American
history, namely the development of agriculture in southwestern Montana during the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, as
well as the relationship of this agricultural development to the historical development of Yellowstone National Park during the period
of significance.

The Watkins Creek Ranch gains additional significance under Criterion A for its historical association with the development of tourism
and ranching in Montana and the Greater Yellowstone Ecosystem. The Watkins Creek Ranch became a dude ranch during the period
when dude ranches in the west experienced a period of prosperity and played an important role in the regional economy of the northern
Rocky Mountains. Seeking to live in a scenic setting during the summer monthY, and aware of the great possibilities for financial
success that came to western entrepreneurs willing to take in paying guests, Clarence™Clix” and Leila Wright and Anne and K. Smith
opened the original Watkins Creek Ranch and Martzel Homestead to Eastern dudes in 1924, Active members in the Dude Ranch
Association, the Watkins Creek Ranch exemplified the working ranch experience where dudes participated in typical day-to-day ranch
activities and special events like round-ups and rodeos. Hebgen Lake afforded numerous opportunities for water-based recreation, like
fishing and water skiing, and the Ranch’s close proximity to Yellowstone National Park was likewise a major selling point with new
and returning clients. Watkins Creek Ranch provided dudes with the western experience they desired, fulfilling their romantic visions
of the West with Cowboys, wildlife, magnificent scenery, excitement and adventure.

The Watkins Creek Ranch is also significant under Criterion B because its nineteenth century origins are closely associated with noted
Montana pioneer George S. Watkins, who significantly impacted the economic development of Madison County and southwestern
Montana generally. Arguably the most notable of early ranchmen in the Madison Valley, Watkins acquired thousands of acres of land
during the late nineteenth century and which he successfully raised thousands of head of cattle and horses. Almost single-handedly,
Watkins constructed a transportation network between Ennis and the Madison Basin. He likewise played a major role in facilitating
the early success of Yellowstone National Park as one of the Park’s primary suppliers of hay and beef during the latter decades of the
nineteenth century. His ingenuity, hard work, and positive example helped encourage the settlement and agricultural development of
the entire region.”’

B«Gtate Resident of 67 Years to Be Buried Today,” The Montana Standard, 26 February 1931, 1 For additional biographical information see Michael
Leeson, History of Montana, 1739-1885, (Chicago: Wamner, Beers and Company, 1885), 1279 and James U. Sanders, ed. Society of Montana
Pioneers: Constitution, Members, and Officers, with Portraits and Maps . . . Vol. 1, (Society of Montana Pioneers: The Werner Co., 1899), 201.
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Gallatin County, Montana
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9. Major Bibliographic References

See continuation sheet

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

____preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) has
been requested.

___previously listed in the National Register

____previously determined eligible by the National Register
___designated a National Historic Landmark

___recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #
___recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #

Primary Location of Additional Data:
_X_ State Historic Preservation Office
____ Other State agency

___ Federal agency

__ Local government

___ University

___ Other -- Specify Repository:

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property: approximately 245

UTM References: Zone Easting Northing
A 12 476729 4962251
B 12 476826 4962264
C 12 476826 4962345
D 12 477014 4962352

See continuation sheet

Legal Location: Portions of the SW Y% of Section 6 and the W % of Section 7, T12S, R4E, Montana Prime Meridian

Verbal Boundary Description

See continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

See continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle: B. Derek Strahn

organization: n/a date: July 10, 2005
street & number: 412 West Harrison Street telephone: 406-587-0254
city or town: Bozeman state: MT zZip code: 59715

Property Owner

During Winter Months:

nameftitte: Lynda Marie Caine

street & number: 3014 Colter Ave. telephone: 406-522-0573
cityortown: Bozeman state: MT zip code: 59715

During Summer Months:

nameftitle: Lynda Marie Caine

street & number: P.O. Box 686 telephone: 406-522-0573
city or town: West Yellowstone state: MT zip code: 59715
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Group One is clustered primarily along an east-west axis of a looping gravel road system (c. 1944) that runs parallel to the Hebgen
Lake shoreline. It consists of a variety of log and log and stone dude ranch era buildings and related sites, structures, and objects.
Contributing resources include the “Family Cabin” (c. 1944); the “Family Cabin” Garage; (c. 1944); a main lodge/dining hall (c.
1946); the Leila Wright Cabin (c. 1954); four double log cabins (c. 1945-46); the Isabelle and Frederick Lincoln Cabin (c. 1954); the
Hebgen Lake Shoreline; a landscaped common area/picnic area (c. 1945); a natural spring; historic walking trail systems (c. 1944-54);
a gravel road system (c. 1944); and a historic water storage tank. These buildings, sites, and structures speak to the property’s later
development as a dude ranch for tourists beginning in 1944,

Group Two is located in the southern portion of the district, clustered around the north-south axis of a secondary looping gravel road
system (c. 1944) that runs perpendicular to Hebgen Lake. It contains the remnants of a late nineteenth and early twentieth century
agricultural complex/homestead. Contributing elements include two log cabins (more recently referred to by the Wright/Smith family
as the “Wash House,” and the “Girls House), a roofless barn, a smokehouse/milking shed, corrals, a loading chute structure, the Ernst
Ruof Ditch and footbridge, a variety of fence lines, and a gravel/dirt road system. Some of these surviving features attest to the site’s
early history as a “summer camp for beef cattle” initially operated by influential Montana pioneer George S. Watkins and his
descendants in what once was known as the Madison Basin.' Others speak to the site’s continued utilization as an agricultural
homestead beginning in the 1920s and up through the Great Depression.

Non-contributing structures, including five staff quarters of various sizes, a double guest cabin, a barn/workshop, a small storage shed,
and a remodeled marina in its historic location are interspersed occasionally throughout the district, but primarily are concentrated in
the district’s southern leg. These structures, while of non-historic age are generally unobtrusive and do not significantly impact the
property’s historic integrity in terms of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling and association. Together, these
historic buildings and structures, centered within an expanse of private land on the southern edge of Hebgen Lake, convey the ranch’s
continuing important role in a recreational movement that helped define western culture as a critical element of our national heritage.

DESCRIPTION OF RESOURCES (Resource numbers correspond to site map numbers)
Group One (Photo Nos. 1 and 2)

Group One consists of nine contributing log and stone dude ranch era buildings and one non-contributing structure that is of a non-
historic age. These buildings speak to the property’s association with the Wright/Smith family and its development as a dude ranch for
tourists beginning in 1944, Adding further historic integrity to Group One are a number of contributing sites, structures, and objects,
including: a landscaped common area/picnic area (c. 1946);  a natural spring (c. 1945); a water storage cistern (c. 1945); a gravel
roadway transportation system (c. 1944); two walking paths (c. 1947 and 1954); and a marina in a historic location (c. 1944).

Buildings
Main Ranch House/Main Lodge (Building No. 1; Photo Nos. 3-6, one contributing building)

The centerpiece of the district, this one-and-one-half story horizontal log building is situated at the nexus of the two main gravel road
networks that form the L-shaped legs of the Watkins Creek Ranch. It is located immediately west of the Ernest Ruof Ditch on a
sagebrush and grassland projection near the southern shore of Hebgen Lake. A landscaped lawn, accented by mature conifers,
surrounds the lodge. A concrete walkway approaches the front porch of the lodge from an adjacent gravel parking area to the south.

Clarence E. “Clix” and Leila Wright hired Snedaker and MacDonald Architects of Salt Lake City to design the lodge in June of 1946,
just three years after they acquired the Watkins Creek Ranch. Original architectural drawings entitled “Main Ranch House Cabin for
the Ranch of Mr. C. E. Wright” indicate that the original structure featured a living room, dining terrace, kitchen, linen storage area,

1Spencer Watkins Interview, 11-11-1968, Bozeman, Montana, unknown interviewer, tape recording in possession of the West Yellowstone
Historical Society, West Yellowstone, Montana. The Madison Basin was essentially fertile grassland that was flooded following the construction of
the Hebgen Dam. The basin is now almost entirely covered by Hebgen Lake.
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two bedrooms, each with an adjoining bathroom, a vegetable cellar, and an office area. According to handwritten notes on the back of
the floor plan, “Shorty” Irwin, a contractor from Three Forks, Montana, completed the building.2

With the death of Clarence Wright in the early 1950s, and the acquisition of the ranch by the Wright’s daughter and son-in-law, Anne
and K. Smith, the Main Ranch House Cabin grew to become the epitome of the ubiquitous central lodge that was popular at so many
western dude ranches. As was the case with most planned dude ranch operations, the main lodge immediately became the Ranch’s
“prime feature” and focal point of tourist activity. According to historian Lawrence R. Bourne, central lodges typically featured one or
more fireplaces, which provided heat and atmosphere simultaneously. Central lodges also contained “three or four large rooms for
lounging, square dancing, other recreation, and eating, unless a separate building housing the dining room.” Kitchens, food storage,
and refrigeration, were often adjacent to the dining area. Decks and porches, which “emphasized the relaxation and slower pace” of
the ranch, were also quite commonplace on central lodges, as well as on the guest cabins, according to Bourne.® All of these elements
were found in the main lodge of the Watkins Creek Ranch, thus making the building especially representative of America’s dude ranch
movement.

Consciously seeking to “bring the outdoors to the indoors” and follow the architectural precedents from tourist-oriented recreational
facilities in the Adirondacks and Yellowstone National Park, the Main Lodge’s interior was characterized by rustic architectural
elements and related decorative features, such as hand-made furniture and native American rugs. *

The impressive log building is constructed of round peeled logs that are stained dark brown. The interstices are filled with
whitewashed cementous daubing. All corners are joined by saddle notching and have sawed ends that extend beyond the joints. The
logs are tapered from bottom to top, being smaller and less long at the top log. The lodge currently sits on a rubble and dirt
foundation. A basement storage area/crawl space is accessed by an interior stairway from the kitchen.

The gable roof structure of the main wing of the building is supported by log ridgepoles and purlins and is clad with corrugated metal.
Eaves extend over the walls and sawn log purlin and ridgepole ends are exposed. The soffit displays beveled shiplap. A large interior
stone chimney protrudes from the gable roof ridge near center of the building.

Two smaller gable-roofed additions flank the central portion of the original building. An offset one-and-one-half story projecting
gable addition featuring ridgepole and purlins, extends the lodge to the East. To the west, a small, one-story gable-roofed kitchen
addition has been constructed. Likely non-historic, the offset west addition also features a gable roof structure formed of ridgepole
and purlins, but the walls are clad in wide clapboard wood siding, thus easily distinguishing this later modification from the historic
portions of the building,

The main entrance to the lodge is located on the east elevation. A simple, single framed door is approached from an open deck
featuring simple wooden benches. A single lamp is found immediately to the right of the main door. Slightly to the north is the
projecting east gable end noted above. The addition features a centrally located, 4/3 divided light sliding window with a screen.

Facing scenic Hebgen Lake, the north elevation features two open-air decks and several large window openings. The log easternmost
wing features a bank of three original, adjacent, and centrally located, 2/3 divided light sliding windows. The log central portion of
this elevation features a pair of original double wooden doors that access a small deck on the far left. Immediately to the right (west)
are three original 6’ x 6° 5/3 divided light fixed windows. Adjacent to these openings are another set of wooden double doors that
access a larger deck and open air seating area. Further right (west), a final 6’ x 6’ 5/3 divided light fixed window, also original,
completes the central portion of the north elevation. The wide clapboard-sided one-story western wing of the north elevation features a
small, open air, wrap-around deck and barbeque area. A wooden door and a bank of three 3’ x 3° fixed windows stretch across much

of its length,

2Snedaker and MacDonald Architects, “Main Ranch House Cabin for the Ranch of Mr. C. E. Wright,” unpublished architectural floor plan dated
June 1946, in possession of Julie Smith Mannino, Hebgen Lake, Montana.

3Lawrence R. Borne, Dude Ranching: A Complete History (Albuquerque: University of New Mexico Press, 1983), 122-23.

4Hau'vey H. Kaiser, “Rustic Interiors of the Adirondack Camps,” Old House Journal 18 (January-February 1990), 45.
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The west elevation features a continuation of the wide clapboard siding and wrap around open-air deck mentioned above. Steps lead
off of the deck to the landscaped lawn that surrounds the lodge. Four 3’ x 3’ fixed windows stretch across all of its width. A small
diameter metal chimney projects up from the kitchen area.

The westernmost portion of the south elevation features a continuation of the wide clapboard siding and wrap around open-air deck
mentioned above. A bank of three, 3’ x 3’ fixed windows and a wooden door stretch across much of its length. The central portion of
the south elevation features a variety of original, adjacent fixed and double-hung divided light windows, which are largely obscured by
large conifer trees. The south elevation of the eastern addition features a centrally located framed wooden door, which accesses the
gift shop/office area. To the left (west) of this door is a sliding window.

The front entrance off of the front porch opens into a rustic lodge style living room. Adjoining bar, dining, and reading areas are easily
accessed. The exposed roof of the projecting gable exhibits substantial cross tie logs with vertical braces extending between the
purlins. A large two-sided stone fireplace dominates the interior central wall. The fireplace has a log mantle and a fire screen adorned
with a western scene.

The Main Lodge is a contributing element of the district.
Family Cabin (Building No. 2; Photo No. 7, one contributing building)

The three bedroom Family Cabin was the first house built at the ranch after the Wright’s purchased the property in 1944. It initially
served as the primary summer residence for Clix and Lelia Wright. Following the construction of the Main Ranch House/Main Lodge
in 1946, the Wright’s moved into the Main Ranch House, and Anne and K. Smith and their children occupied the Family Cabin.’ It is
located just south of the main gavel road system intersection and the main lodge. A landscaped lawn, accented by mature conifers,
surrounds the residence.

The noteworthy log building is constructed of round peeled logs that are stained dark brown. The interstices are filled with
whitewashed cementous daubing. All corners are joined by saddle notching and have sawed ends that extend beyond the joints. The
logs are tapered from bottom to top, being smallest and least long at the top log. The cabin sits on concrete foundation.

The gable roof structure of the main wing of the building is supported by log ridgepoles and purlins and is clad with corrugated metal.
Eaves extend over the walls and sawn log purlin and ridgepole ends are exposed. The soffit displays beveled shiplap. An interior
stone chimney protrudes from the gable roof ridge near center of the building. A smaller gable-roofed addition with sawn log ridgepole
ends projects to the south from the central portion of the original building.

The main entrance to the cabin is located on the east elevation and is approached from an open porch, which is accessed from the
south, and spans the entire width of the cabin. This porch sits under the main gable roof, which is supported by vertical log posts. A
simple porch railing consisting of two logs spanning the width of the porch helps to define the space from the front wall of the cabin.
The porch has an open ceiling with exposed ridgepole and purlins. Beveled shiplap clads the ceiling and wood planking covers the
floor. The offset main entrance is flanked to the left by two 4/3 divided light fixed window with screens. A single 4/3 divided light
fixed window is to the right. Slightly to the west is the projecting south gable end noted above. The addition features a small, centrally
located, 3/2 divided light fixed window with a screen.

The south elevation features a small gable-roofed addition with sawn log ridgepole ends projecting from the central portion of the
original building. A simple wooden door provides secondary access to the addition. The addition is flanked on either side by windows.
On the right (east) side of the addition a single 3/2 divided light rectangular fixed window is located. To the left (west), two square
3/3 divided light fixed windows are located.

The west elevation features centrally located, 4/3 divided light, square fixed windows and 3/2 divided light rectangular windows,
similar to those found on the east and south elevations.

5Julie Smith Mannino Interview, 8-1-2004, near Hebgen Lake, Montana, interviewed by the author, tape recording in possession of the author,
Bozeman, Montana.
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The left (east) side of north elevation features a bank of four, large 2/3 divided light rectangular sliding windows with screens. The
right side of this elevation contains a single 3/3 divided light fixed window.

The Family Cabin is a contributing building within the historic district.
Family Cabin Outbuilding (Building No. 3; Photo No. 8, one contributing building)

The small, rectangular, one bay, detached outbuilding sits west of the Family Cabin and was presumably constructed shortly after the
residence. It was primarily utilized for wood storage, is of wood frame construction, and is clad in horizontal shiplap siding. Small,
centrally located slider windows exist on the south and north elevations. It rests on a concrete pad. The outbuilding has a gable roof
with eaves extending over the walls. It is covered in wood shingles.

The Family Cabin Garage is a contributing building within the historic district.
Leila’s Cabin (Building No. 4; Photo Nos. 9-11, one contributing building)

According to Julie Smith Mannino, Leila’s cabin was constructed in 1954 as a residence for Lelia Wright after Clix Wright had died.

It is located on the top of a hillside just southwest of the main lodge and almost immediately west of the Family Cabin. From the cabin
stunning views of Hebgen Lake and the Main Lodge are easily enjoyed. Native plant life and wildflowers, accented by mature
conifers, surrounds the residence.

As is the case with other primary buildings at the ranch, this well-preserved log building is constructed of round peeled logs that are
stained dark brown. The interstices are filled with whitewashed cementous daubing. All corners are joined by saddle notching and
have sawed ends that extend beyond the joints. The logs are tapered from bottom to top, being smallest and least long at the top log.
The cabin sits on concrete foundation.

The gable roof structure of the rectangular building is supported by log ridgepoles and purlins and is clad with corrugated metal. Eaves
extend over the walls. The soffit displays beveled shiplap. An interior stone chimney protrudes from the gable roof ridge near center
of the building.

The main entrance to the cabin is located on the east elevation and is approached from an open porch and exposed deck area, which is
accessed both from the north and from the south, and spans the entire width of the cabin. A portion of the porch/deck area sits under a
shed roof, which is supported by log purlins and vertical log posts. A simple porch railing consisting of one log wraps around much of
the porch/deck area, helping to define this outdoor living space from the front (east) wall of the cabin. The porch has an open ceiling
with exposed purlins. Beveled shiplap clads the ceiling and wood planking covers the porch/deck floor. The offset main entrance is
flanked immediately to the right (north) and left (south) by large plate glass windows. Further to the left two 2/3 divided light
rectangular sliding windows covered by a single screen are located.

On the south elevation a two centrally located and abutting 2/3 divided light sliding windows covered by a single screen offer light and
ventilation. On the West (rear) elevation, four window openings are located—two rectangular 2/3 divided light fixed windows, and
two 2/2 divided light fixed square windows. No window openings are located on the north elevation, but decorative elk antlers and a
single light are located near the gable peak.

Leila’s Cabin is a contributing building within the historic district.
Guest Duplex Cabin #1 (Building No. 5; Photo No. 12, one contributing building)

As interest in the Watkins Creek Ranch grew following the end of World War II, Clix and Lelia Wright sensed an opportunity to profit
by formally entering the dude ranch business. During the summer of 1945, three identical guest duplexes were constructed down the
gravel road and west of the Family Cabin. A fourth identical cabin was erected in 1946.° These initial guest quarters were
intentionally sited in a manner consistent with many other earlier dude ranch operations in the Greater Yellowstone Ecosystem.
Because the main buildings of virtually all dude ranch complexes in the Greater Yellowstone Ecosystem were wooden—and typically
log—they needed to “be spaced far enough apart to eliminate hazard if one caught fire, and yet close enough for ease in getting around

%(Mannino Interview)
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the ranch,” according to historian Lawrence Borne. In this instance, they were separated somewhat from the Main Lodge and then
evenly spaced along the Hebgen Lake shoreline to enhance the sensory experiences of paying guests while simultaneously facilitating
firefighting.’

Copying the architectural precedents established by the Family Cabin and the Main Ranch House/Main Lodge, and the best preserved
of the guest facilities, Guest Duplex Cabin #1 is a rectangular log building constructed of round peeled logs that are stained dark
brown. The interstices are filled with whitewashed cementous daubing. All comners are joined by saddle notching and have sawed ends
that extend beyond the joints. The logs are tapered from bottom to top, being smaller and less long at the top log. The duplex sit on a
concrete foundation.

The gable roof structure of the building is supported by log ridgepoles and purlins and is clad with corrugated metal. Eaves extend
over the walls and sawn log purlins and ridgepole ends are exposed. The soffit displays beveled shiplap. A single metal chimney on
the left (east) side of the building is present.

Facing Hebgen Lake to the north, each of the two units comprising the duplex has its own entrance, which is approached from a
centrally located open porch that extends across half of the front elevation. The porch is accessed via two steps both from the east and
from the west. The porch sits under a shed roof, which is supported by log purlins and vertical log posts. A simple porch railing
consisting of one log stretches across the porch, providing safety and helping to define this outdoor living space from the front (north)
wall of the duplex. The porch rests approximately one-and-one-half feet above the ground on concrete piers, and has an open ceiling
with exposed purlins. Beveled shiplap clads the ceiling and wood planking covers the porch floor. Front doors for each of the
individual duplex units are symmetrically spaced on the front elevation. Each door is flanked by two adjacent 2/3-divided light
rectangular sliding windows covered by a single screen. Decorative flower boxes are situated under each window. Rustic chairs are
available on the front porch for the use of visiting guests

The east and West elevations of the guest duplex are identical. Neither contains a window.

The South elevation contains four symmetrically placed windows—two, square 4/4 divided light fixed windows on the outside, and
two smaller square 2/2 divided light fixed windows on the inside. A centrally located electric power box is also present on the south
elevation.

Unlike some of the other guest quarters at the ranch, this duplex does not contain a small non-historic addition, and thus most closely
resembles the character and appearance of the original guest quarters.

Guest Duplex Cabin #1 is a contributing element of the district.
Guest Duplex Cabin #2 (Building No. 6; Photo No. 13, one contributing building)

"Constructed the same year as Guest Duplex Cabin #1, and copying the architectural precedents established by the Family Cabin and
the Main Ranch House/Main Lodge, Guest Duplex Cabin #2 is a rectangular log building constructed of round peeled logs that are
stained dark brown. The interstices are filled with whitewashed cementous daubing. All corners are joined by saddle notching and have
sawed ends that extend beyond the joints. The logs are tapered from bottom to top, being smaller and less long at the top log. The
duplex sit on a concrete foundation.

The gable roof structure of the building is supported by log ridgepoles and purlins and is clad with corrugated metal. Eaves extend
over the walls and sawn log purlins and ridgepole ends are exposed. The soffit displays beveled shiplap. Two centrally located metal
chimneys rise from the ridgeline of the original structure. A small, non-historic wood frame addition with matching corrugated metal
roofing extends the duplex to the east. The ridgeline of the new addition is slightly lower than that of the original building.

Facing Hebgen Lake to the north, each of the two units comprising the duplex has its own entrance, which is approached from a
centrally located open porch that extends across half of the front elevation. The porch is accessed via two steps both from the east and
from the west. The porch sits under a shed roof, which is supported by log purlins and vertical log posts. The porch rests
approximately one-and-one-half feet above the ground on concrete piers, and has an open ceiling with exposed purlins. Beveled

"(Borne 1983, 122-23)
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shiplap clads the ceiling and wood planking covers the porch floor. Front doors for each of the individual duplex units are
symmetrically spaced on the front elevation. Each door is flanked by two adjacent 2/3-divided light rectangular sliding windows
covered by a single screen. Decorative flower boxes are situated under each window. Rustic chairs are available on the front porch
for the use of visiting guests

The east elevation of Guest Duplex Cabin #2 is comprised of a small, gable-roofed, non-historic bathroom addition. The addition is of
a wood frame, rather than a log construction, and contains small 2/3 divided light sliding windows that generally match those found on
the rest of the building. Although the addition dates from the 1990s, and is clearly distinguished from the original building in terms of
design and materials, it is limited in size and scale in comparison the rest of the building. The visual impact of this non-historic
addition on the historic integrity of this duplex is unfortunate, but relatively minimal.

The South elevation of the original structure contains four symmetrically placed windows—two, square 4/4 divided light fixed
windows on the outside, and two smaller square 2/2 divided light fixed windows on the inside. A centrally located electric power box
is also present on the south elevation.

Guest Duplex Cabin #2 is a contributing element of the district
Guest Duplex Cabin #3 (Building No. 7; Photo No. 14, one contributing building)

Constructed the same year as Guest Duplex Cabins #1 and #2, and copying the architectural precedents established by the Family
Cabin and the Main Ranch House/Main Lodge, Guest Duplex Cabin #3 is a rectangular log building constructed of round peeled logs
that are stained dark brown. The interstices are filled with whitewashed cementous daubing. All corners are joined by saddle notching
and have sawed ends that extend beyond the joints. The logs are tapered from bottom to top, being smaller and less long at the top log.
The duplex sit on a concrete foundation.

The gable roof structure of the building is supported by log ridgepoles and purlins and is clad with corrugated metal. Eaves extend
over the walls and sawn log purlins and ridgepole ends are exposed. The soffit displays beveled shiplap. Two centrally located metal
chimneys rise from the ridgeline of the original structure. A small, non-historic wood frame addition with matching corrugated metal
roofing extends the duplex to the east. The ridgeline of the new addition is slightly lower than that of the original building.

Facing Hebgen Lake to the north, each of the two units comprising the duplex has its own entrance, which is approached from a
centrally located open porch that extends across half of the front elevation. The porch is accessed via two steps both from the east and
from the west. The porch sits under a shed roof, which is supported by log purlins and vertical log posts. The porch rests
approximately one-and-one-half feet above the ground on concrete piers, and has an open ceiling with exposed purlins. Beveled
shiplap clads the ceiling and wood planking covers the porch floor. Front doors for each of the individual duplex units are
symmetrically spaced on the front elevation. Each door is flanked by two adjacent 2/3-divided light rectangular sliding windows
covered by a single screen. Decorative flower boxes are situated under each window. Rustic chairs are available on the front porch
for the use of visiting guests

Like Guest Duplex Cabin #2, the east elevation of Guest Duplex Cabin #3 is comprised of a small, gable-roofed, non-historic
bathroom addition. The addition is of a wood frame, rather than a log construction. Unlike the addition on duplex #2, however, only
the east elevation contains small 2/3 divided light sliding windows that generally match those found on the rest of the building.
Although the addition dates from the 1990s, and is clearly distinguished from the original building in terms of design and materials, it
is limited in size and scale in comparison the rest of the building. The visual impact of this non-historic addition on the historic
integrity of this duplex is unfortunate, but relatively minimal.

The South elevation of the original structure contains four symmetrically placed windows—two, square 4/4 divided light fixed
windows on the outside, and two smaller square 2/2 divided light fixed windows on the inside. A centrally located electric power box
is also present on the south elevation.

Guest Duplex Cabin #3 is a contributing element of the district
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Guest Duplex Cabin #4 (Building No. 8; Photo No. 14, one contributing building)

Constructed in 1946, one year after Guest Duplex Cabins #1-3, and copying the architectural precedents established by the Family
Cabin and the Main Ranch House/Main Lodge, Guest Duplex Cabin #4 is a rectangular log building constructed of round peeled logs
that are stained dark brown. The interstices are filled with whitewashed cementous daubing. All corners are joined by saddle notching
and have sawed ends that extend beyond the joints. The logs are tapered from bottom to top, being smaller and less long at the top log.
The duplex sit on a concrete foundation.

The gable roof structure of the building is supported by log ridgepoles and purlins and is clad with corrugated metal. Eaves extend
over the walls and sawn log purlins and ridgepole ends are exposed. The soffit displays beveled shiplap. Unlike the previous guest
duplex cabins, which feature two centrally located metal chimneys that rise from the ridgeline of the original structure, this building
contains one centrally located square stone chimney. A small, non-historic wood frame addition with matching corrugated metal
roofing extends the duplex to the south. The ridgeline of the new addition is slightly lower than that of the original building.

Facing Hebgen Lake to the north, each of the two units comprising the duplex has its own entrance, which is approached from a
centrally located open porch that extends across half of the front elevation. The porch is accessed via two steps both from the east and
from the west. The porch sits under a shed roof, which is supported by log purlins and vertical log posts. A simple porch railing
consisting of one log stretches across the porch, providing safety and helping to define this outdoor living space from the front (north)
wall of the duplex. The porch rests approximately one-and-one-half feet above the ground on concrete piers, and has an open ceiling
with exposed purlins. Beveled shiplap clads the ceiling and wood planking covers the porch floor. Front doors for each of the
individual duplex units are symmetrically spaced on the front elevation. Each door is flanked by two adjacent 2/3-divided light
rectangular sliding windows covered by a single screen. Decorative flower boxes are situated under each window. Rustic chairs are
available on the front porch for the use of visiting guests.

Unlike Guest Duplex Cabins #2 and 3, which contain small, non-historic additions on the east elevations, the non-historic addition of
Guest Duplex Cabin #4 is located on the south elevation, thus minimizing the visual impact of the addition significantly. The addition
is of a wood frame, rather than a log construction. As is the case with the other cabin additions, the addition on duplex #4 contains
small 2/3 divided light sliding windows that generally match those found on the rest of the building. Although the addition dates from
the 1990s, and is clearly distinguished from the original building in terms of design and materials, it is limited in size and scale in
comparison the rest of the building. The visual impact of this non-historic addition on the historic integrity of this duplex is minimal,
given that it is located on a non-character-defining elevation.

Guest Duplex Cabin #4 is a contributing element of the district
Isabel and Frederick Lincoln Cabin (Building No. 9; Photo No. 15, one contributing building)

According to Anne Smith, Isabel Lincoln was a daughter of John D. Rockefeller Jr., who owned considerable lands by the Teton
Mountains in Wyoming, near Jackson Hole.® Beginning in the 1940s and perhaps earlier, Lincoln and her husband Frederick became
enamored with the Hebgen Lake Area. After visiting the Watkins Creek Ranch, they received permission from the Wright/Smith
families to construct a cabin on site in 1954. Lincoln also became instrumental in attracted additional business to the ranch. Through
her social circles and word of mouth she convinced many affluent clients—usually her friends and acquaintances—to become paying
guests at the Ranch during the summer months. When the Lincolns were not visiting the Ranch themselves, their friends and
acquaintgances stayed in their cabin. Other guests of the Wright/Smith families may have also rented the cabin, when it was not being
utilized.

Although the Lincoln’s could have afforded to construct a much larger cabin, or chosen to make more of an architectural statement
with their quarters, they opted instead to have their cabin situated in close proximity to the other cabins at the ranch. Moreover, the
Lincoln cabin closely resembles the others constructed in 1945-46—a clear indication that they wanted their unit to be affiliated with

$For an examination of Isabel Lincoln’s life and family history see Isabel Lincoln Elmer, Cinderella Rockefeller: An Autobiography (New York:
Freundlich Books, 1987.)

°See Anne Smith, written responses to questions from the author, July 2004, document in possession of the author, Bozeman, Montana and (Julie
Smith Mannino Interview)
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the increasingly successful Watkins Creek Ranch. The overall compatibility of this later addition to the Ranch indicates that the
overall goal of rustic architectural compatibility that was promoted by the Dude Ranch Association, was also a significant concern for
the Wright/Smith families. '

Constructed in 1954, and copying established architectural precedents, The Isabel and Frederick Lincoln Cabin is a rectangular log
building constructed of round peeled logs that are stained dark brown. The interstices are filled with whitewashed cementous daubing.
All corners are joined by saddle notching and have sawed ends that extend beyond the joints. The logs are tapered from bottom to top,
being smaller and less long at the top log. The duplex sit on a concrete foundation.

The gable roof structure of the building is supported by log ridgepoles and purlins and is clad with corrugated metal. Eaves extend
over the walls and sawn log purlins and ridgepole ends are exposed. The soffit displays beveled shiplap. Unlike the previous guest
duplex cabins, which feature two centrally located metal chimneys that rise from the ridgeline of the original structure, this building
contains one centrally located metal chimney and no non-historic wood frame addition because it was intended to be utilized as a
single unit, rather than as a duplex.

Facing Hebgen Lake to the north, the main entrance of the Lincoln cabin is approached from a centrally located open porch that
extends across half of the front elevation. The porch is accessed via two steps both from the east and from the west. The porch sits
under a shed roof, which is supported by log purlins and vertical log posts. A simple porch railing consisting of one log stretches
across the porch, providing safety and helping to define this outdoor living space from the front (north) wall of the building. The porch
rests on the ground and has an open ceiling with exposed purlins. Beveled shiplap clads the ceiling and wood planking covers the
porch floor. A single front door, symmetrically located on the front elevation, is flanked by two adjacent 2/3-divided light rectangular
sliding windows covered by a single screen. Rustic chairs are available on the front porch for the use of visiting guests

The East and West elevations of the building are identical. Neither contains a window. Like Guest Duplex Cabins #4, the non-historic
addition of the Lincoln Cabin is located on the south elevation, thus minimizing the visual impact of the addition significantly. The
addition is of a wood frame, rather than a log construction. As is the case with the other cabin additions, the addition on duplex #4
contains small 2/3 divided light sliding windows that generally match those found on the rest of the building. Although the addition
dates from the 1990s, and is clearly distinguished from the original building in terms of design and materials, it is limited in size and
scale in comparison the rest of the building. The visual impact of this non-historic addition on the historic integrity of this duplex is
minimal, given that it is located on a non-character-defining elevation. The South elevation contains four symmetrically placed
windows—two, square 4/4 divided light fixed windows on the outside, and two, smaller, square 2/2 divided light fixed windows on the
inside. A centrally located electric power box is also present on the south elevation.

The Isabel and Frederick Lincoln Cabin is a contributing element of the district
“Caddis” House (Building No. 10; Photo No. 16, one non-contributing building)

At the far west end of the row of cabins that define the Hebgen Lake shoreline of the Watkins Creek/Firehole Ranch is a modern log
building dating from 1992. Closely following established architectural precedents within the district, the log building consists of round
peeled logs that are stained dark brown. The interstices are filled with whitewashed cementous daubing. All corners are joined by
saddle notching and have sawed ends that extend beyond the joints. The logs are tapered from bottom to top, being smaller and less
long at the top log. The building rests on a concrete foundation.

Like the other cabins on site, the gable roof structure of the building is clad with corrugated metal. Eaves extend over the walls. The
soffit displays beveled shiplap. Unlike the previous guest duplex cabins, this building contains one centrally located stone chimney. A
small wood frame addition breaks the main ridgeline and projects to the south.

Facing Hebgen Lake to the north, the main entrance of the Caddis cabin is approached from a centrally located open porch that extends
across half of the front elevation. The porch is accessed via two steps both from the east and from the west. The porch sits under a
shed roof, which is supported by log purlins and vertical log posts. A simple porch railing consisting of one log stretches across the

"%For Dude Ranch Association perspectives regarding the importance of rustic architecture and architectural compatibility see “Log Cabins,” The
Dude Rancher 4:7 (May 1935): 7 and “The Individuality of the Dude Ranch,” The Dude Rancher 4:7 (May 1935): 6 and 25



NPS Form 10-900-a
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Pla¢
Continuation Sheet

Section number 7

OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

€S

Watkins Creek Ranch
Gallatin County, MT

Page 9

porch, providing safety and helping to define this
the ground and has an open ceiling with exposed

Large divided light sliding and fixed windows si
elevations. A rear door on the south elevation is
one siding windows are located on the south and
elevation.

The “Caddis” Cabin is a non-contributing buildin
Sites:
Hebgen Lake Shoreline (Sites and Structures |

The Hebgen Lake shoreline was created when the
was altered somewhat during a significant earthqu
a significant character-defining feature that define
which the Ranch’s guest cabins were oriented, the
1944. Boating, fishing, swimming, and water-ski
generated by the Wright/Smith family.

The Hebgen Lake Shoreline is a contributing site

Main Lodge Commons/Picnic Area (Sites and

%

outdoor living space from the front (north) wall of the building. The porch rests on
purlins.

ilar to those found on the historic duplex cabins are situated on the west and north
ccessed via a simple wood deck, just off of the gravel parking area. Small one-by-
past elevations. A centrally located electric power box is also present on the south

g within the district due to its non-historic age.”

Viap Reference #1; one contributing site)

Madison River was flooded after the construction of Hebgen dam in 1909-1910, and
1ake that impacted the vicinity during the late 1950s. The shoreline is noteworthy as
s the northern boundary of the district. More than simply a scenic amenity toward
Hebgen Lake shoreline was an important locus of recreational activity following

ing were popular activities on the Lake and regularly advertised in publications

to the historic district.

Structures Map Reference #2; Photo No. 5, one contributing site)

Despite their varied locations and sizes, planned dude ranch complexes were also often sited in a generally consistent manner. A

central feature of most dude ranch complexes was

a centrally located landscaped green-space or parkland. These commons/picnic area

afforded a functional space for cherished commu

al activities, like picnicking, horseshoes, or baseball, while simultaneously providing

the guests with “a good view of the surrounding countryside,” according to historian Lawrence Bourne."’

The Commons/Picnic Area at the Watkins Creek Ranch is located immediately north of the Main Lodge, between the lodge itself and
the southern shores of Hebgen Lake. From this vantage point, guest could simultaneously view the lakeside activities and the

surrounding mountainous scenery. Given its proXimity to the kitchen area and bar, the area was also commonly utilized as a place for
relaxing while waiting for evening meals to be sefved. Picnic tables and a barbeque are were (and still are) conveniently located here.
Grass was mowed to create a more park-like setting and to encourage baseball, volleyball and other types of group-oriented activities.

As a significant character defining feature of most western dude ranches and a focal point for tourist activities at the ranch, the Main
Lodge Commons/Picnic Area is a contributing site to the historic district.

Natural Spring (Sites and Structures Map Reference #3, one contributing site)

Unfailing water supplies were absolute necessitie
ranch facilities, according to Lawrence Borne."*
on a forested hill southwest of Leila’s cabin and g
concrete cistern/storage tank.

Given its importance to the daily functions of the

for all dude ranch operations and, therefore, “a common feature” found at all dude
resh water for the Watkins Creek Ranch was provided by a natural spring located up
djacent to the Gallatin National Forest. Water from the spring was piped to a

ranch during the months of tourist operations, the spring is a contributing site to the

historic district.

(Borne 1983, 122-23)
2(Ibid.)
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Structures:

Water Storage Cistern (Sites and Structures Map Reference #4, one contributing structure)

Fresh water is piped from the natural spring to a concrete water storage cistern located slightly southwest of Leila’s Cabin, on the hill

overlooking the ranch complex. The cistern is of
wastewater was disposed of using “a basic septic

The water storage cistern is a contributing structu;
Gravel Roadway System (Sites and Structures

Guests historically arrived at the Watkins Creek R
Service Road that roughly follows the boundary o
road at the southern boundary of the district, angl
south shore of the Lake the road splits. The westg
district. There, at a three-way intersection the ro;
of resources. Turning north, the road leads to the
system leads to buildings and resources comprisi

concrete construction with a metal roof. According to Ranch Manager Robin Locke,
tank system.”"

re to the historic district.
Map Reference #5; Photo Nos. 1 and 3, one contributing structure)

tanch via boat, from the north side of Hebgen Lake, or by car via an improved Forest
f the Gallatin National Forest. An unimproved gravel road leaves the forest service
ing in a slight northeasterly direction toward Hebgen Lake. Just before reaching the
>rn arm of the road leads toward the two main groupings of resources comprising the
dway system diverges. Continuing west, the system moves into the northern cluster
marina adjacent to the southern shore of Hebgen Lake. Turning south, the road

g group number two. The road system is historically important as the main auto

access to the ranch, and as a functional component of the internal workings of the ranch. After 1944, most tourists accessed the ranch
via this roadway system. Weekly auto trips to neighboring Yellowstone National Park also traveled this transportation network.
Although the current gravel road system has been widened and regarded, it closely follows the general route of the original roadway
accessing the ranch and is highly illustrative of the ranch’s close connections with transportation, and especially auto-oriented tourism

after 1944,
The gravel Roadway System is a contributing st
Walking Paths (Sites and Structures Map Refi

Two heavily used walking paths are clearly evide
during the construction of the Main Ranch House
Lodge. Walking Path #2—almost certainly creat
the hill to the Main Ranch House/Main Lodge. E
transportation networks of the Ranch complex an
center of operations—the Main Ranch House/Ma

The walking paths are a contributing structure to
Marina (Sites and Structures Map Reference

Beginning in 1944, and possibly before, the Wrig
water-skiing, fishing, and swimming. A small m
House/Main Lodge on the shore of Hebgen Lake.
located in exactly the same spot that it always was
wooden dock. The marina is closely associated w
because the physical structure was constructed aft

The Marina is a non-contributing structure to the

13 Robin Locke Interview, August 1, 2005, near Hebge
author, Bozeman, Montana.

cture to the historic district.
rence #6 and #7; Photo Nos. 8 and 9, one contributing structure)

t at the Watkins Creek Ranch. Walking Path #1—Ilikely created in summer of 1946

ain Lodge—extends from the Family Cabin to the Main Ranch House/Main

d after the construction of Leila’s Cabin in 1954—extends from Leila’s Cabin down
ch structure plays an important role in the informal, non-auto-oriented pedestrian
clearly establish the close connections between the Wright/Smith family and the

n Lodge.

he historic district.
8, one non-contributing structure)

t/Smith began utilizing Hebgen Lake for recreational purposes—namely boating,
ina accessed by a gravel road spur is located immediately north of the Main Ranch
The Marina has been modified and upgraded periodically for safety purposes, it is
s and generally retains its historic appearance and function. It consists of a modem
rith the historic function of the ranch as a vacation resort and tourist destination, but
er the period of significance, it is considered a non-contributing resource.

Historic District.

n Lake, Montana, interviewed by the author, Derek Strahn, tape recording in possession of the
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Group Two: (Photo No. 17)

Group Two is contains the remnants of a late ning

teenth and early twentieth century agricultural complex/homestead and evidence of

dude ranch functions at the Ranch from 1944 to the present day. Contributing buildings include two log cabins (more recently referred
to by the Wright/Smith family as the “Girls Hous¢” and the “Wash House,”), a barn, and a smokehouse—all original remains of the

Watkins Creek Cattle Camp and likely dating fro
contributing sites, structures and objects, includin
Ditch Irrigation System and Footbridge (c. 1926)
1920s); a riding path (c. 1944); and three boundat
history as a “summer camp for beef cattle” initiall
what once was known as the Madison Basin.'* O
in the 1920s and up through the Great Depression
ongoing modern day function as a dude ranch.

Buildings
“Girl’s” House (Building No. 11; Photo Nos. 1{

According to Anne Smith, when here parents acqy
shed/barn, thatch covered homestead cabin, wash
dining area for work crews who were constructing
were up and running after World War 11, this stru
therefore nicknamed “the girl’s house” by membe
located within the gravel road loop that defines th
landscaped lawn also surrounds the residence.

This noteworthy log building appears less old tha
Watkins Creek Cattle Camp operations during the
residence of one of the early homesteaders in the

X

before 1890. Enhancing the historic integrity of Group Two are a number of

g: the Coffin Lake Pack Trailhead; grazing pastures and hay fields; the Emest Ruof
the Watkins pole corral (pre-1890); a loading chute with associated fencing (c.

ry markers/fence lines. Some of these surviving features attest to the site’s early

y operated by influential Montana pioneer George S. Watkins and his descendants in
thers speak to the site’s continued utilization as an agricultural homestead beginning

. More recently, the non-contributing features of the grouping speak to the property’s

8 and 19, one contributing building)

nired the Watkins Creek Ranch in 1943-44, several buildings including “a big
house, and girl’s house” were already on site." The building provided shelter and a
y the dude ranch buildings during the 1944-47 period. When dude ranch operations
cture was utilized as a dormitory for young women working at the ranch. It was

rs of the Wright/Smith families.'® It is the northernmost of two historic structures

e grouping of buildings clustered along the southern leg of the ranch complex. A

n the “Wash House,” which almost certainly dates from the time of the original
late nineteenth century. This historic two bedroom cabin was likely the main
vicinity—David and Pricilla Whisman, Ernest Ruof, or William Martzel-—and likely

dated from the 1906-1926 period that these parties files their adjacent homestead claims on lands now considered to be part of the

Watkins Creek Ranch.'’

Like the other historic buildings in the district, t
interstices are filled with whitewashed cementous
beyond the joints. The logs are tapered from bo
foundation.

The gable roof structure of the main wing of the b
Eaves extend over the walls and sawn log purlin ¢
concrete block chimney protrudes from the gable
ridgepole ends projects to the south from the cent

The main entrance to the cabin is located on the e
south, and spans the entire width of the cabin. Th:
simple porch railing consisting of three logs spant
The porch has an open ceiling with exposed ridg

14(Spencer Watkins Interview)

'5(Anne Smith, 2004)

16(Mannino Interview)

"The property owners and their dates of acquisition w|
4 East of the Principal Meridian,” West Yellowstone H

daubing. All comers are joined by saddle notching and have sawed ends that extend
m to top, being smallest and least long at the top log. The cabin sits on concrete

I:I)“Girl’s House” is constructed of round peeled logs that are stained dark brown. The

uilding is supported by log ridgepoles and purlins and is clad with corrugated metal.
nd ridgepole ends are exposed. The soffit displays beveled shiplap. An interior
roof ridge near center of the building. A smaller gable-roofed addition with sawn log
ral portion of the original building.

ast elevation and is approached from an open porch, which is accessed from the

s porch sits under the main gable roof, which is supported by vertical log posts. A
ning the width of the porch helps to define the space from the front wall of the cabin.
epole and purlins. Beveled shiplap clads the ceiling and wood planking covers the

ere located on Patricia Kerzenmacher, “Plat Map for Homesteads, Township 12 South, Range
listorical Society Archives, West Yellowstone, Montana.
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floor. The central main entrance is flanked to the
To the west is the projecting south gable end note;

The south elevation features a small gable-roofed
centrally-located, 3/2 divided light fixed window
wing can be found two window openings—a 2/3 {
fixed window near the center of the building. Thg
and a propane tank.

left and right by two adjacent 2/3 divided light fixed windows with one screen each.
d above. The addition features a secondary access door on the east elevation.

addition with sawn log ridgepole ends projecting from the southwest corner. A small,
with a screen illuminates the addition. On the south and north elevations of the main
fixed divided light window adjacent to the addition and a larger 4/3 divided light

> west elevation features offset, 4/3 divided light, square fixed window, a power box,

The “Girl’s House” is a contributing building wi
“Wash” House (Building No 12; Photo Nos. 2

Likely dating from the late nineteenth century, wi
“Wash” house was lived in by Anne and K. Smi
and the Smith’s relocated to the Family Cabin. O
head wrangler. Later it served as the laundry faci
separator, and a trapdoor to the fruit cellar.

Like the other historic buildings in the district, th
The interstices are filled with daubing. All corner
The logs are slightly tapered from bottom to top.

The gable roof structure of the building is suppo
over the walls. An interior metal chimney protrud

The main entrance to the cabin is located on the
south, and spans the entire width of the cabin. Th
Wood planking covers the porch floor. The offse
sliding windows with one screen each.

The south elevation features a small, centrally loc
the left (west). The west elevation features two
no windows and a propane tank.

The “Wash House” is a contributing building wi
Watkins Cattle Camp Barn/Milking Barn (Bu

When J. Spencer Watkins described the original
corrals, and a smokehouse, used for jerking elk a
that that the roofless log building that survives to
to Robin Locke, who worked as a wrangler at Wa
possibly before. What remains of the original stry
saddle notching and have sawed ends that extend
hinges exists on the north elevation.

The barn is a contributing site to the historic distr

18, Spencer Watkins, Lucky Montana Cowpoke (New
19(Mannino Interview)

in the historic district.
and 21, one contributing building)

en the Ranch was utilized as a cattle camp by George Watkins and his cowboys, the
until Clix and Leila Wright moved into the Main Rain House/Main Lodge in 1947
ce vacated by the Smith’s the Wash House served as the residence for the ranch’s
ity for the Ranch. Among other things, the building contain a washer, dryer, milk

“Wash House” is constructed of round peeled logs, but these logs are unstained.
are joined by saddle notching and have sawed ends that extend beyond the joints.
The cabin has no foundation.

ed by log ridgepoles and purlins and is clad with corrugated metal. Eaves extend
s from the gable roof ridge near center of the building.

st elevation and is approached from an open porch, which is accessed from the
s porch sits under the main gable roof, which is supported by vertical log posts.
main entrance is flanked to the right (north) by two adjacent 2/2 divided light

ted, 3/2 divided light fixed window to the right (east) and a secondary access door to
entrally located and adjacent 1/1 double hung windows. The north elevation contains

in the historic district.
Iding No. 13; Photo No. 22, one contributing site)

atkins Creek Ranch he recalling that “We had two large cabins, a barn, a lot of

d deer meat . . .”"* Julie Smith Mannino, daughter of Ann and K. Smith, believes

ay are likely remnants of the original Watkins Creek Cattle Camp barn.'” According
kins Creek Ranch, this building was utilized as a milking barn during the 1960s, and
icture are four walls constructed of round peeled logs. All comers are joined by
beyond the joints. The ruins have no foundation. A wooden plank door with metal

ICt.

York: Vantage Press, 1958): 21.
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Smokehouse/Pig Shed (Building No. 14; Photo

Located immediately east of and adjacent to the W

No. 22, one contributing building)

Vatkins Cattle Camp ruins and forming part of the southern wall of the pole corral,

the pig shed is a simple 6’ x 8’ gable roofed build
a cattle camp by George Watkins and his cowboy.

ing that likely dates from the late nineteenth century, when the Ranch was utilized as
. Julie Smith Mannino referred to this building as “the milking shed” but it may

have been the smokehouse described by J. Spencer Watkins that was part of the original camp. According to Robin Locke, who

worked as a wrangler for Watkins Creek Ranch,

%is building was utilized as a pig shed. The Wright/Smith family kept a pig onsite to

dispose of all their “wet garbage” and, thereby minimize the threat of bears in the vicinity. The gable roof structure is clad in

corrugated metal. A simple door offers access to
The milking shed is a contributing building in the
Staff Quarters #1 (Building No. 15; Photo No.

Constructed in 1982, Staff Quarters #1 is an L-Sh
the other buildings in the district, this structure is

on site, the gable roof structure of the building is

the dormitory is located on the east elevation and
entire width of the cabin. This porch sits under the
of various sizes lend some character to the east el
variety of window types, including fixed, caseme
windows are centrally located.

Staff Quarters #1 is a non-contributing building i
Staff Quarters #2 (Building No. 16; Photo No.

Identical to Staff Quarters #3, Staff Quarters #2 1
rectangular duplex dormitory for the staff of the
structure more visually compatible with the histo
stained dark brown. The cabin sits on concrete fi

the building on the north elevation.
historic district.
23, one non-contributing building)

aped dormitory for the staff of the Watkins Creek/Firehole Ranch. Unlike most of
of wood frame construction and is clad in clapboard siding. Like the other buildings
clad with corrugated metal and its eaves extend over the walls. The main entrance to
is app<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>